THE PUBLICATIONS OF THE SURTEES SOCIETY. VOL. XCV. MEMORIALS OF ST. GILE'S, DURHAM; BEING GRASSMEN'S ACCOUNTS AND OTHER PARISH RECORDS, TOGETHER WITH DOCUMENTS RELATING TO THE HOSPITALS OF KEPIER AND ST. MARY MAGDALENE Published @ 2017 Trieste Publishing Pty Ltd

ISBN 9780649754915

The Publications of the Surtees Society. Vol. XCV. Memorials of St. Gile's, Durham; Being Grassmen's Accounts and Other Parish Records, Together with Documents Relating to the Hospitals of Kepier and St. Mary Magdalene by The Surtees Society

Except for use in any review, the reproduction or utilisation of this work in whole or in part in any form by any electronic, mechanical or other means, now known or hereafter invented, including xerography, photocopying and recording, or in any information storage or retrieval system, is forbidden without the permission of the publisher, Trieste Publishing Pty Ltd, PO Box 1576 Collingwood, Victoria 3066 Australia.

All rights reserved.

Edited by Trieste Publishing Pty Ltd. Cover @ 2017

This book is sold subject to the condition that it shall not, by way of trade or otherwise, be lent, re-sold, hired out, or otherwise circulated without the publisher's prior consent in any form or binding or cover other than that in which it is published and without a similar condition including this condition being imposed on the subsequent purchaser.

www.triestepublishing.com

## THE SURTEES SOCIETY

### THE PUBLICATIONS OF THE SURTEES SOCIETY. VOL. XCV. MEMORIALS OF ST. GILE'S, DURHAM; BEING GRASSMEN'S ACCOUNTS AND OTHER PARISH RECORDS, TOGETHER WITH DOCUMENTS RELATING TO THE HOSPITALS OF KEPIER AND ST. MARY MAGDALENE

Trieste

#### THE

### PUBLICATIONS

OF THE

## SURTEES SOCIETY

ESTABLISHED IN THE YEAR M.DCCC.XXXIV.



### VOL. XCV.

#### FOR THE YEAR M.DCCC.XCV.

22

## MEMORIALS

OF

# ST. GILES'S, DURHAM,

BEING GRASSMEN'S ACCOUNTS AND OTHER PARISH

RECORDS, TOGETHER WITH DOCUMENTS

**RELATING TO THE** 

### HOSPITALS

OF

KEPIER AND ST. MARY MAGDALENE.

Bublished for the Society BV ANDREWS & Co., DURHAM ; WHITTAKER & Co., 2, WHITE HART STREET, PATERNOSTER SQUARE ; BERNARD QUARITCH, 15, PICCADILLY ; BLACKWOOD & SONS, EDINBURGH. 1896. At a General Meeting of the SURTEES SOCIETY, held in Durham Castle on Tuesday, June 6th, 1893, the Rev. W. GREENWELL in the chair.

It was ordered,

That a Volume relating to the Parish of St. Giles's, Durham, including Kepyer Hospital, be edited for the Society by the REV. J. BARMBY.

JAMES RAINE,

Secretary.

### CONTENTS.

INTRODUCT	TION		342					8747	222	PAGE.
CORRIGEN	DA		1997							xxxix
PREFACE T	GR/	SSMEN'	s Acc	OUNTS		1000				1
GRASSMEN	s Acc	OUNTS,	VOL.	Ι					***	9
	10-02020-07	.,	Vol.	u						118
PARISH RI	GISTE	RS, VOI	. 1	1922	- 22	3322			22	123
		Voi	. 11					<del>.</del>	9	141
		Vol	- 111		444			44		148
		VOL	. IV			2.975				158
"LIBER SANCTI EGIDII, DUNELM."										161
BONDS		0000	0.02		2.1			122	22	183
EXTRACTS	FROM	тик Ас	COUN	TS OF T	HR	CHURCH	WARI	DENS		186
APPENDIX	A: D	OCUMRN	TS R	ELATING	то	KEPYER	Hos	PITAL		192
	B: D	OCUME	TS R	ELATING	то	MARY M	AGD	ALEN		
		Hospr	FAL							233
	C: R	ELATING	з то	THE PAR	RISH	CHURCH	ANI	GUILI	DOF	
		ST. GI	LES					2.59		248
11	D: 1.	MAST	ERS C	F KEPY	ER	HOSPITAL				252
	п.	INCU	BEN1	IS OF ST	r. G	ILES'	1.12	25.4		262
DESCRIPTION	ON OF	SEALS		-006	•••				-	269
GLOSSARY	••••		***		***		4			271
INDEX		0.000								277

### 

Ŋ 

2

#### INTRODUCTION.

THE Borough of St. Giles is a suburb of the City of Durham, lying between the upper and lower portions of the River Wear, which approaches the city from the East and, after encompassing in a loop the hill on which the Castle and Cathedral stand, flows away towards the East The street called Gilligate is between the again. approaching and retiring streams, being a continuation of Claypath in the parish of St. Nicholas, and beginning where Bakehouse Lane on the one side and the narrow Tinkler's Lane on the other separate the two parishes, and where the Leaden Cross, shown in Speed's map of Durham (see Surtees' "History of Durham," Vol. iv, Part ii, p. 31), formerly stood. Thence the street ascends eastward in two successive acclivities to the summit of the hill on which the church stands, the ground sloping steeply down on each side to the river. The church, so situated, catches the eye of visitors to Durham with a pleasing effect, perhaps suggesting the thought to some of "the decent church that tops the neighb'ring hill." Its modest low tower, according so well with the surrounding scene, has happily been left unchanged by modern restoration. East of "the street" (as Gilligate is often called in the old records) the ancient parish extended far into the adjacent country, including a moor, which comprised, at the time of its enclosure in 1817, about 235 acres.

Minds sensible of the fascination of antiquarian research, when on the look-out for antiquities, cannot but long to go back beyond the time at which any definite history of a place begins. Hence, before attempting a sketch of what is historically known for the purpose of elucidating the records now published, it may be interesting to cast a brief glance into the times, so far as can be known or surmised, before there was any suburb of a city, or city at all, in the locality. Of pre-historic occupation of the vicinity there appear, indeed, to be but

#### INTRODUCTION.

scanty traces so far discovered, though a stone axe is said to have been found at Sherburn Hospital, and two interments near Sherburn and Sacriston. There is, however, a significant intimation of British occupation in the term Maiden, applied to three places close to Durham, one of which was on Gilesgate Moor. This word, usually now combined with Castle, is believed to be British, and to denote some kind of fortified mound. The designation is not uncommon, being found in various parts. The following description by Leland of a structure so called may be cited in illustration :- "There is a Place an viii Mile plaine West from Bowis (Bowes, on the edge of Stainmoor, in Yorkshire) a Thorough-fare in Richemountshire cawllid Maiden Castel, where is a greate rounde Hepe a 60 Foote in Cumpace of rude Stones, sum smaul, sum bygge, and be set in formam pyramidis ; and yn the Toppe of them al vs set one Stone in conum beying a yard and a halfe in lenghth. So that the hole may be countid an xviii Foote hy, and ys set on a hille in the very Egge of Stanemore. And this is a limes betwixt Richemontshire and Westmerlande" ("Itinerary," Vol. v, p. 122). The common addition of Castle to the old word Maiden cannot be taken as proof that the Romans had used the old fort as a castellum, though no doubt they have done so in some cases.

The three places thus designated near the city of Durham are (1) Maiden Castle, on the hill so-called, which rises abruptly above the Wear between Durham and Shincliffe; (2) a mound, partly artificial, called Maiden's Bower, among the Red Hills, where the banner of St. Cuthbert is said to have been placed during the battle of Neville's Cross; and (3) another Maiden's Bower (or Maiden's Arbour, or, as appears from the Grassmen's Books of St. Giles, formerly Maiden Castle), all traces of which have now disappeared, on Gilesgate Moor. The earliest known allusion to the last is in Wharton's continuation of the history attributed to William Chambre, the last of the "Tres Scriptores," where, in reference to a marble cross transferred to Durham Market Place in the time of Bishop Tunstall (d. 1571), it is said, "Crux

į.